ARCHAEOLOGICAL ASSESSMENT, MCINTOSH OF DYCE, ABERDEEN

13-24 JUNE 2005

FOR MALCOLM ALLAN HOUSEBUILDERS LTD

Introduction

This is an addendum to the previous report for the above assessment and is written following an archaeological assessment by Alba Archaeology and Alison Cameron at BP Dyce, Stoneywood Road, Dyce (site code E84; see Plan 1).

Background

Pearson (1986, 298) described a section of the canal he saw drained in the area of Tait’s Paper Mill as ‘The eastern bank is supported by a dry stone wall at least 3 feet high, with the bed of the waterway sloping steeply from the base of the wall to the lowest part of the channel.  The western bank is supported by a dry stone wall about 1 foot high, its top being at the same level as the top of the wall at the eastern bank.  The bed of the waterway slopes down from the base of the western wall to the lowest part of the channel, which is level and closer to the eastern bank.  The higher part of the western slope is covered with stones, which seem to be natural, unlike the walls which are made from broken stone.  Unfortunately many of these details cannot be seen when the waterway is filled to the top of the walls with murky water.  This shape is entirely correct for a canal with the towpath along the eastern bank (Rolt 1955), where it is known to have been (plans, 1843; Cubbitt and Gibb 1845), and also is the shape known from many sections of the canal’.

When the canal was first constructed it was 17ft (c 5.6m) wide and 3 ft (c 1m) deep.  Within the first six years it was increased to a maximum of 23 ft (c 7.6m) and 3ft 10in (c 1.3m) over much of its distance (Graham 1967-8, 171).

The assessments
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During the 13-24 June 2005 assessment Trenches 1, 2 and 16 were excavated in the former car park of McIntosh of Dyce (see Plans 1 and 2) on the extreme north of the development site.  There had been a large amount of water management in the area including the insertion of a large concrete sump (left).  This confused the evidence from these trenches and it was thought at the time that on balance the features excavated and recorded were probably associated with the 20th-century water management during the life of Lawson’s/McIntosh factory.

Following an assessment at BP Dyce, Stoneywood Road on 14-15 December 2005, the significance of the McIntosh of Dyce site features was realised and this report therefore is an addendum for the previous report for this site for the trenches 1, 2 and 16.  The remainder of the McIntosh of Dyce report is still valid.

At both sites a large cut feature (AA at McIntosh and AB at BP Dyce see Sections 1 and 2) was recorded.  The fills of these ditches was large rounded and angular stones in medium brown sand.  At BP the full width of this feature was not recorded, but at McIntosh it was 9.1m wide.  At McIntosh it survived to a depth of 0.9m and at BP to a minimum of 1.2m.  At McIntosh the fill of the west side of the feature was small angular boulders whilst at the east it was larger rounded cobbles (see Section 1).  At BP the fill, 3, was large rounded cobbles in loose brown sand.

At BP layer 4, consisted of a dark grey clay loam which formed an edge or revetment on the east side of the feature.  This overlay a bank of natural compact clay with iron pan, 5, which was also seen at the McIntosh site.

A small ditch, AC was seen at both sites to the east of AA/AB.

Interpretation
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From the evidence of these two assessments it is likely that feature AA/AB is the remains of the Aberdeenshire canal which had been truncated by more recent activity at both sites.  The width of AA at the McIntosh site at 9.1m is slightly wider than the maximum known width from documentary research (Graham 1967-8, 171) but the depth is consistent with the depth seen by Graham when a section of the canal was drained.

Context 5, the bank of compact natural clay appeared to form a bank and may be the platform forming the area of the towpath of the canal.  This is known to exist on the north side of the canal in its W-E running sections and on the east side in the sections where it ran in a north-south orientation.  Small ditches AC may have been drainage ditches running alongside the canal towpath.

A wall seen on the southern side of the feature interpreted as the canal at 476 Great Northern Road (Cameron 2001) may have been the boundary wall of the canal land.  No similar feature was seen at either of these sites.
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